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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Patowmack Canal at the Great Falls of the Potomac in Virginia is a skirting canal
approximately 3/4 of a mile long and containing five locks, a large holding basin, two
~guard gates, a wing dam, and several other related features. It was constructed by

the Patowmack Canal Company between 1785 and 1802 to provide passage around the Great
Falls of the Potomac.

The canal consisted of: a large wing dam at its upper terminus, an upper guard gate,
the canal bed, a large holding basin, a lower guard gate, the five locks including
their attendant gates, and a stone jetty at its lower terminus. In addition, the
town of Matildaville was to Be constructed as an accompanying trade center and
headquarters for the Patowmack Company.

Wing Dam (canal 1nlet) QU%/?&J[ 0|

At the upper terminus of the canal, a wing dam extended into the river approximately
1,200 feet. TIts purpose was to channel water into the canal, especially at times of
low water. Remnants of this structure indicate it was constructed of stones, possibly
in wooden cribs, and its upper elevation would have been the operating level of the
canal. Thus, surplus water simply flowed over the top of the dam. This structure is
located 1,600 feet above the Great Falls Park Visitors Center.

Upper Spillway 29-tlI-02-

Below the wing dam in the river side of the canal wall, there was a low masonry dam
constructed in the bed of an existing stream channel. Tts upper elevation was again
the working level of the canal and it allowed excess water to spill over the dam and
return to the river. This structure is only barely visible and is located 1,300 feet
above the Great Falls Park V1$1tors Center.

Upper Guard Gate Zm ‘ZH 0?7

Immediately below the upper spillway was the upper guard gate. This controlled the
entrance of water into the entire canal system below this point. Evidence indicates
that the gates were of the swing or mitre type. On the berm bank a heavy stone wall
20 feet thick extends mearly 40 feet into the berm wall to resist flood waters. On
the river side, below the guard gate, the canal walls are about 20 feet thick and
constructed of large stones, dry laid with a slight batter. In places these walls,
extending 10 feet from the canal bed, rise from bedrock, and in places the canal bed
was cut into bedrock from 1 foot to 3 feet. The guard gate is located 1,300 feet
above the Great Falls Park Visitors Center. ' '

Holding Basin -\~ L\l 04 ,

About 2,800 feet below the upper guard gates, a large holding basin was constructed.
Tt is roughly triangular in shape, covering approximately 2 acres, with the long axis
paraliei to the canal. This basin provided for the turning and docking of the canal
boats and a large impound area providing water to the locks located below it. The
river side wall of this basin 1s constructed of stone of a size and manner similar to
that below the upper guard gate. The berm-side wall no longer exists, but it is

- assumed it was constructed in a like manner. Water from the holding basin was
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channeled into the locks of the canal through a lower guard gate, and the excess was
returned to the river via a waste weilr/spillway. This basin and its attendant waste

weir and guard gate are located approximately 1,500 feet below the Great Falls Visitor
Center.

Waste Weir/Spillway 7ZA-2-1l- 0S5

In the river side of the basin wall there is 2 break in the masonry where the waste weir
was located. The exact configuration of this structure cannot be determined at this
time, but it may have been constructed of wood. Its purpose was to maintain a maximum
operating level for the water in the holding basin.

Lower Guard Gate 29-2 - 06

The lower guard gate, located at the southwest end of the holding basin enabled the
water in the locks below to be regulated. Hollow quoin stones of well dressed Seneca
sandstone are visible in the walls on either side, thus indicating the use of a swing-
type mitre gate. An extra 4-inch recess in the quoins accommodated two sliding wicket
gates in each of the swing gates. The guard gate channel was 14 feet in width, and there
¥as apparently extensive use of flat strap iron cramps In the coping and stones beneath
them in the channel walls,

Locks

Below the guard gates were the locks which were numbered in descending order, with
number I being at the upper end, adjacent to the holding basin, and number V being
located near the weir.

Lock I 29 -1\ -0

From the lower guard gate the canal wall is constructed of native stone. Lock I is
approximately 100 yards below the guard gate and seems to have been 14 feet wide and
100 feet long, pocket to pocket. Its 1ift capacity was 10 feet. The walls were
probably a composite of ashlar dressed red Seneca sandstone face over a rubble interior.
The two pairsof gares were of a swing-type with sliding wicket gates. The upper lock
gates and quoin stone coping were 2 feet, 2 inches above the level of the coping of
the lower lock gates. The upper course is the only one currently in view and it con-
sists of four stones with a recess of 8% inches deep to receive the mitre sill. There
was evidently little use of iron cramps in the lock walls, except in the gate pockets.
There are currently a few bulges in the lock walls, and there has been some repair to
the walls with brick, rubble, and cement in modern times. This feature is located
1,700 feet below the Great Falls Visitor Center.
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Lock II 2.4 24| -03

Lock TI is 12 feet wide, 88 feet long between gate pockets and had a 1lift capacity of
15 feet. There were several types of stone used in the construction of this lock, with
free stone used in all of the gate pockets. Ashlar red sandstone was used on the river
side wall, except for a small section of rough cut nature stone. There are a large

number of stonecutters' marks found in the stomes of this lock, particularly in the free
stone.

The lock gates were of the swing mitre type with butterfly wicket gates. There are
indications that the cut stone in the gate pockets were cramped, but all pockets have
since collapsed. About 30 feet of the upper end of the berm wall have collapsed below
the breast wall, as have about 16 feet below the lower gate pocket, on the river side.
This lock is located 1,800 feet below the Great Falls Visitor Center.

2.1 -04 [ro / w

Locks III, IV, and V

Locks III, IV, and V were a riser, or stalrstep, of locks, each being immediately
adjacent to the other, and sharing the common gate between them. Lock IIT is 12 feet
wide, 111 feet long, and has a lift of 15 feet. Locks IV and V, however, were blasted
from the bedrock with black powder in hand-drilled holes. Lock III is unique in that
the lock bends 18 degrees within the lock itself. These locks are 2,100 feet below
the Creat Falls Visitor Center.

Jetty 1A DAL= {27
At the lower end of the gorge of Locks IV and V, the canal returns to the Potomac River.
On the rlver side of this gorge, a stone jetty was built into the river to protect the
entrance/exit to the canal. Presently there are no known remnants of this jetty
remaining.

ASSOCIATED FEATURES

Wil szee 2NV

Just helow the Great Falls Visitor Center and adjacent to the river side canal wall
are the foundations of an old mill. Perilod maps refer to the existence of a grist
mill, while more recent maps refer to a saw mill. Ruins of masonry walls indicate
the water wheel plt was adjacent to the wall of the canal and that it was fed from
the canal by a wooden flume from some distance above the location. The remains of an
existing masonry welr which now feeds water to the complex seems to be of more recent
construction and probably is not original to the construction of the mill.
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Forge/Foundry Site {3%,,2—l\~\£¥
Just below the mill site are the remains of footings and foundation for a forge/foundry.
Archeological evidence has revealed the function of this building through excavation of
both artifacts and slag. There are also the remains of a cast iron pipe below the
foundation which seems to lead from the canal bank to the river bed. Tt is assumed
this would have enabled the use of a turbine as power necessary for a forge.

Matildaville 24 -1%
Initially it was planned for a small town of 40 acres to accompany the development of
the canal as a trade center and headquarters of the Canal Company. Lighthorse Harry ;

Lee, father of General Robert E. Lee,was the founder of this town. Due to the finan-
cial failure of the canal the town never fully developed and all that currently
remains are the ruins of a few structures.. It is known that there were additional
wooden structures, including, among others, warehouse and workmen's quarters, but no
remains of these are known.

Dickey's Inn (Myers Tavern) Z}%"j’\\"‘b
This building survived for many years following the failure of the canal and
Matildaville. It was constructed of logs, squared and whitewashed, of two stories,
with five rooms upstalrs and two downstairs, and a kitchen. During the Civil War the F

inn was used for a Confederate Army headquarters. The building burned in 1942, and the
chimney still partially stands surrounded by a pile of rubble. The inn is located
1,500 feet below the Great Falls Visitor Center.

Spring House "U}‘I/‘Ll“ -\1
The spring house, located near Dickey's Inn, served to keep perishables cool. The floor
of the spring house was approximately 30 inches below grade. All that currently remain
are the foundation wallg, the spring inlet, and a small set of stairs.

Superintendent's House fﬁﬁ’fll‘ ’le
The Superintendent's house was constructed in 1796 of stone and brick. It was two
stories with a front elevation of 25 feet and a depth of 35 feet. At present only the
foundation and some of the corner stones remain standing. It is located 1,700 feet
below the Great Falls Visitor Center.

General Appearance
The Patowmack Canal is currently in "ruin," in that much of the canal bed is filled
with debris and silt. It is quite possible, however, that the canal prism 1s intact
throughout the major portion of its length. The lock gates are no longer in existence,
as the locks were dismantled in 1830, but significant archeoclogical and documentary
evidence exists to accurately interpret their manner of construction.
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Assoclated Historic Artifacts

All historic artifacts and documents original to or historically associated with
the property described herein and im National Park Service ownership and control
are defined as components of this property for the National Register. Such
materials are listed and described in the park's museum catalog.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE -

The Patowmack Company was organized to comstruct a canal system maklng the Potowmac River
navigable for trade from Georgetown to Harpers Ferry.. If the Potomac River could be made
navigable, it was a short land passage from Harpers Ferry to the Monongahela or
Youghiogheny Rivers and then to the Ohio River, which at that time was a principal route
to the west. Canals were to be built at Great Falls, Little Falls, Seneca, Shenandoah,
and House Falls. Only at Little Falls and Great Falls were locks required. During this
period canals with locks were uncommon in the United States, and thus represented a
significant engineering achievement.

The Patowmack Canal at The Great Falls-of the Potomac was the largest of the five skirting
canals on the Potomac. To re-enter the river below The Great Falls, a channel had to be
blasted through solid rock. Holes were bored by hand into the rock and filled with
blasting powder, and fired. This constituted one of the first uses of explosives in an
American Engineering project. : : '

George Washington, early in his life, reallzed the 1mportance of the Potomac River as a
Toute to the west. Before the Revolutionary War he was active in soliciting the interest
of Virginia and Maryland legislators in a canal venture, and he was successful in securing
the passage of an act in Virginia in 1772 for improving the Potomac. Due largely to
Washington's influence, the legislators of Maryland and Virginia passed laws incorporating
the Patowmack Company in 1784; Washington served as the Company's first president. Shares .
in the Patowmack Company were sold to subscribers. Although the country was in a period
of financial stress, the stock was quickly taken with a large number of Alexandria
residents participating. The states of Maryland and Virginia originally purchased 50
shares each, and by 1821 Virginia had 70 shares and Maryland held 220. These states
purchased almost half of the 701 shares of the Patowmack Company, a sizable investment
during a period when states did not promote. extensive public works. The Patowmack
Company's venture was one of the first state financed internal improvements in the USA.

Work on the canal began in 1785 and was completed in 1802, under the direction of several
canal engineers, John Rumsey appears to have been the principal engineer. The Patowmack
Company was a financial faflure; however, it-is significant for its early recognition of
the need for an effective means of transportation between the east and west, and the
development of canal building in the United States,

On August 15, 1826, the bankrupt Patowmack Canal Company dissolved and its charter and
its charter and official papers passed to the Chesapeake and Ohio Caral Company.
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The town of Matildayille was a speculative venture to parallel the development of the 1
Patowmack Canal at The Great Falls. In a letter of February 13, 1789, to Thomas Jefferson,| 2
George Washington stated, "...T conceive that place [future town site] must become very

valuable... I cannot entertain a doubt of the establishment of a town in that place.”" The [
establishpent of the town was financially undertaken by General Henry ("Light Horse Harry"){
Lee, who obtained a charter for the 40 acre townsite from the Virginia Assembly in 1790.

Lee and his business assoclates hoped that Matildaville would grow into an important j |
industrial center in which surplus water from the canal could be used for power. With the
failure of the Patowmack Canal at The Great Falls, Matildaville lost its economic base and
ceased to function as a community, never realizing the expectations of Lee and the other
inyestors.

The Patowmack. Canal at The Great Falls survives today as an example of the Patowmack
Company's pioneering canal venture in the United States. Although it, and the various
structures associated with it, are in ruins, they still constitute significant remains

of early canal technology and represent commercial speculation by individuals and states
that marked much of the natifon's growth.
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MnnuscriRts:

The records of the Potomac Company, deposited at the

National Archives, are the main source of manuscript material.
Unfortunately, the records are incomplete and the bulk of those
available relate chiefly to finances. With only few exceptions,
however, the minutes of meetings of the Company presidents and
directors and meetings of stockholders have been preserved. 2
There was or: annual meeting of dircctors and stockholders held
in August, and many special meetings during the year. These

minutes provide practically all the information that is available

about construction activities, 1785 through 1828. Alsc useful
are some letters sent and received by Company officials, reports
of the president and directors to the stockholders, other reports,
memoranda, lists, printed documents, and the like, classified in
the Archives as Correspondence and Reports,

Internal evidence suggests that the Company superintendents
and engineers prepared detailed monthly and bi-annual reports.

By a rare coincidence, almost all of these reports are missing.

Printed primary sources:

Americer State Papers, Washington, D. C., 1834, Miscellaneous, II,
1809-1823.
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Fitzpatrick, John C., editor, The Writings of George Washington,
Government Printing Office, 1931-1944, 39 vols; The Diaries of
George Washirgtorn, Houghton Mifflin Company, New York, 1925,

4 vols, These two sources are the best for background informa-
tion on the organization of the Potomac Company and the first
four years of canal construction.

lening, William Waller, The Statutes at Large; bzing a collection
of all the Laws of Virgintaq, Richmond, I1823.

Lear, Tobias, Letters and Recollections of George Washington,
Loubleday, Pape and Company, New York, '1906.

Sparks, Jarel, The Writings of George Washingicn, Boston, 1835.
The America: Historical Review, XXVIII, No. 3 (April 1923) and
No. 4 (July 1923). This velune contains numercus letters of

Washington and others dealing with the Potomac project, from
the Minnesota Historical Society.

Specialized works:

A Treatise of Intermal Navigation, U. . Doubleday, 1817.

Phillips, J., 4 General History of Inland Havigation, Foreign
and Domeatie, London, 1792,

Recuell De Planches, sur Les Sciences, les Arta Libéraux, A Paris,
1767,

Vallance;, Charles, A Treatise on Inland Navigation, ¢r, the art

of making Rivers navigable, of making canals in all sorts of scils,
and of corstructing Locks and sluices, Dublin, 1763.

Encyclopedias:

Encyelopaedia Britammieca, Edinburgh, 1771, II.

Harper's Encyclopasdia of United States History, VII.
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Newsgapers:

The Evening Star, Washington, D. C., May 13, 1893, W. S. Jackson,
"The Potomac Canal." Tllustrations from photographs taken Apriil
17, by Henry G. Wagner.

Ceneral works:

Bacon-Foster, Corra, "Early Chapters in the Development of the

Potomac Route to the West,' Records of the Columbia Historical

Scetety, Washington, D, C., 1912, XV. This is the best source

on the subhject »f the Potomac canals; numerous documents of the
Potomac Compar are reproducad, especially minutes of meetings

apd reports o . presidents.

Boardman, TFov W., Jr., Canals, Henry Z. Walck, Inc., Yew York,
1959.

Bryan, Wilhelmus Bogart, A History of the National Capital, The k
Macmillan Company, New York, 1914, I.

Buehr, Walter, Through the Locks, Carals Today and Yeaterday,
G. P. Putnam's Sons, New York, 1954,

De Moré, Eric, The Canals of England, The Architectural Press,
London, 16561.

"Diary of Mrs. William Thornton," Records of the Coluwmbia Historical
Sootety, Washington, D. C., X.

Gutheim, Frederick, The Potorac, Rinehart and Company, Inc.,
New York, 1949.

Hadfield, Charles, Introducing Canals, Ernest Benn Limited,
London, 1955; The Canal Age, Frederick A. Praeger, New York,
1969,

Hulbert, Archer Butler, “The Great American Canals," Historic
Highways of America, The Arthur H. Clark Corpany, Cleveland, Chio,
Xiii; Washington and the West, New York, 19C5, Journal of 1784
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Nelson, Thomas Forsythe, Washington's Canal Around the Great
Falls of the Potomaec, Washington, D. C., 1910.

Payne, Robert, The Canal Builders, the Story of Canal Ergineers
Through the Ages, The Macmillan Company, New York, 1959.

Pilkington, Roger, How Deats Go Uphill, Abelard-Schuman, New York,
1959,

Rolt, L. T. C., Navigable Wateruays, Longmans, Green and Co.,
London, 1949,

Scharf, Thowas J., History of Maryland, 1879, I1.
Smith, Jo Anna, History of the Creat Fulls Canal and lLocks, ASCE
National ieceting on Transportation Engineering, Washington, D. C.,

1569.

Taggard, Hugh T., "Old Georgetown," Records of the Columbia Hiatorical
Sootety, 1508, XI.

Vernon-Harcourt, Leveson Francis, Rivers and Canals, Oxford, Clarendon
Press, 1896, 2 vols.

Warden, D. B., Deseription of the District of Colwmbia, Paris, 1816.
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 VIRGINIA —MARYLAND

\ 7.5 MINUTE SERIES {TOPOGRAPHIC)
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